
Monday, July 11, 2022
REGULAR MEETING

YCS Board of Education Meeting | YCS Central Office | 1885 Packard Road | Ypsilanti, MI 48197 |
734.221.1230 
6:30 p.m.

1. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL OF BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Dr. Celeste Hawkins, Board President

A. Roll Call of Board of Education Members

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Dr. Celeste Hawkins, Board President

A. Pledge of Allegiance

3. ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA

A. Acceptance of Agenda

4. ACHIEVEMENTS, AWARDS & RECOGNITION

A. Teacher of the Year 2022 - Lauren Fardig-Diop

B. Michigan School Business Officials Business Office Manager Certification - Barbara Boone

C. Michigan School Business Officials Certified Transportation Director Certification - Kimberly Searcy

D. Recognition of 2021-2022 Seal of Biliteracy Recipients

5. PRESENTATIONS

A. World Languages/EL Update

B. Clean School Bus Grant: Priya Nayak, Director of Business/Finance

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS #1

A. Guidelines for Public Comment

7. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Consent Agenda

8. ACTION ITEMS: Student Affairs

A. Approval for Annual Instructional Material

B. Acceptance of Educational Program Contracts

9. ACTION ITEM: Human Resources

A. Approval of the Reid-Willis Company Contract, 2022/23

10. ACTION ITEMS: Business and Finance

A. Acceptance of the YMCA/EMU Room 107 and 110 Chapelle Lease

B. Acceptance of YCHS Pool Restoration Change Order from Honeywell



C. Acceptance of the Resolution to Add the Additional 3 mills to Cover the Headlee Rollback for the November 2022
Election

D. Acceptance of AAATA 2022 Mileage

11. PUBLIC COMMENTS #2

A. Guidelines for Public Comment

12. DISCUSSION

A. Board of Education Subcommittee Reports

13. BOARD/SUPERINTENDENT COMMENTS

A. Board/Superintendent Comments

14. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING

A. Adjournment of Meeting



July 11, 2022
Board of Education Update



Transforming Lives - Connecting Cultures

YCS 

● An enriching community filled with natural resources of a vibrant cultural expression

● A district committed to dismantling the status quo and honoring student voice

● Dynamic innovators offering cutting edge and rigorous education

● Multilingual staff offering Immersion and World Language programming

● A school district dedicated to the reimagining of the student’s educational experience which honors 

each student’s genius and individual talents and aspirations



Spanish Immersion, English Learner Development
and

 World Languages at Ypsilanti Community Schools

World Language and 
Immersion Mission

The mission of the YCS World 
Language program is to develop 
empowered, multilingual and 
culturally proficient students 
equipped to transform our global 
society.

EL Mission

The YCS EL department will establish 
and sustain  a safe, caring and creative 
learning environment that guarantees 
an equal education opportunity to every  
student, challenging each student to 
reach their maximum potential.



Powerful Partnerships

Stronger Together

This academic year of 2021/22 the collaboration with Wayne State University has proven to be an extremely 

valuable asset in carrying out our language program goals. In addition to the grand successes within the 

classrooms, our collaboration with Wayne State has:

● Created a pathway for promising prospective teachers to attain their certification at drastically reduced 

tuition rate.  These teach candidates will also be able to take classes in a hybrid format, reducing the barrier 

of weekly transport to classes

● Created an invaluable resource as Dr. DeNicolo, a WSU professor of Bilingual Education, worked with the 

team to assist in the crafting culturally responsive lessons for the immersion program

● Resulted in Wayne State University being at our regularly scheduled team meetings to provide insight and 

guidance in shaping our program into the rigorous, culturally responsive and empowering program that it is.

WSU UM

  City of Ypsilanti

EMU



Spanish Immersion & World Language   5 Year Plan

Spanish Immersion & World Language   5 Year Plan

 Early Elem Elementary Middle School High School

1 Spanish Immersion 
kindergarten
Ford ELC 

1 teacher, 
1 para

Our amazing 
scholars’ progress!

4th grade 
5th grade 
Spanish & Cultural 
Studies 

Erickson
Holmes
Estabrook

6th grade Spanish

7th grade Spanish

8th grade Spanish

YCMS

Spanish 
1, 2, 3

YCHS

Year 1

2021-22

Actual  
for  

2021/22

2 teachers 
were 

allotted 
Only 1 FTE 

hired for 
21-22     

Spanish 1 & 2 
only. 

Allotted .5 
FTE, went 

unfilled

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=FKKKIFT87rM
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=FKKKIFT87rM


Spanish Immersion & World Language   5 Year Plan

Spanish Immersion & World Language   5 Year Plan

 Early Elem Elementary Middle School High School FTE needs

1 Spanish Immersion 
kindergarten teacher
Ford ELC, para

1 Spanish Immersion 
1st grade teacher
Ford ELC, para

1 Pre-K Spanish 
Immersion teacher
Ford ELC, para

3rd, 4th, 5th grade 
Spanish & Cultural 
Studies 

Erickson
Holmes
Estabrook

6th grade
Spanish

7th grade
Spanish

8th grade
Spanish

YCMS

Adding 1.0 World 
Language teacher

Spanish 
1, 2, 3, 4

Arabic 1
ASL online

YCHS

Year 2

2022-23

Adding 3rd 
grade



YCHS Growth

❖ 43 newly enrolled English Learners; 38 with no English, 5 at a low-intermediate level

➢ Majority entered after 2nd semester began, enrollment grew weekly.

➢ 24 students arrived after having endured interrupted education; either missing a year of high school credits or 

having  not attended school since their sixth grade year

❖ In contrast, 7 beginners enrolled 2019/2020 and 2 beginners enrolled 2020/2021

➢ 2021/2022 saw a 95% increase in newcomer/beginner enrollment

          Current Needs:

❖ Two beginner classes to better support newcomers/low – impacted literacy  vs. high beginner students

❖ Increased need for professional development for secondary general education teachers

❖ Co-teaching in history, science, and math based on EL student placement

❖ Credit recovery opportunities for students arriving deficient in credits

❖ Additional 1.0  FTE so there are 2 full time EL teachers at the the high school

Significant Growth 21/22: AC Tech, YSMC, ACCE



Embracing Our Community

Newcomer Center: Ford & Estabrook

● Building on Ford’s growing focus on honoring our cultural and language diversity:

○ K-1 Newcomer Center will welcome WIDA Level 1 language learners August 2022

○ Enrollment will include 20 new speakers of English 

○ One EL teacher and one paraprofessional

● Supporting Estabrook’s EL Magnet School historical status:

○ 2-5 Newcomer Center will welcome WIDA Level 1 Language learners August 2022

○ Enrollment will include 25 new speakers of English

○ One EL teacher and one paraprofessional 



Seal of Biliteracy

2022 Recipients of the Seal of BiliteracyIbrahim

Abd-Rahman

Diego

Nixon

Dorian

Melissa



Unapologetic Acceleration for Excellence

● Cultivating  the genius our students bring to school every day
● Opening doors for our students’ access to their widest career path

● Leading the county in innovation & rigor

● Elevating YCS to a highly competitive county status

● Building Student Global Awareness

● Expanding Cultural Proficiency 

● Strengthening and Celebrating Community Connections

The time is now to provide the academic acceleration our students deserve.
This is our call to action to open doors for our children’s future. 

This YCS initiative supports the following: 



1



Overview of  
the  Bipartisan  
Infrastructure  
Law Clean  
School Bus  
Program

2

Under Title XI: Clean School Buses and Ferries, the Bipartisan  
Infrastructure Law (BIL) provides $5 billion over five years  
(FY22-26) for the replacement of existing school buses with  
clean school buses and zero-emission school buses .

These new clean school bus replacements will produce either  
zero or low tailpipe emissions compared to their older diesel  
predecessors.

School bus upgrades funded under this program will result in  
cleaner air on the bus, in bus loading areas, and in the  
communities in which they operate.

The first funding opportunity under this program will be the  

2022 Clean School Bus Rebates.



Engage Engage stakeholders in program 
development

Evolve Evolve the programs, as needed, based 

on  successes and lessons learned

Promote Promote cost parity between 

bus  technologies

Allow Allow school districts multiple 

opportunities  to apply for funding

EPA’s
Clean  

School Bus  
Program

Goals
Maximize Maximize the number of zero emission 

and  clean buses that get funded

Ensure Ensure a broad geographic distribution 

of  awards

3



Clean 
School  Bus 
Program  
Available  
Funding

4

Half of the $5 billion total  
funding is dedicated for 
zero-  emission school buses

Half of the $5 billion total  
funding is dedicated for clean  
and zero-emission school 
buses



Why is EPA Running a Rebate Program?

Fastest funding  
program to  

develop

5

Quickest  
timeline fleets  

to receive  
funding

Straightforward  
rules - rebates  

are for bus  
replacements  

and      
infrastructure  

only

Streamlined  
application,  

selection, and  
funding  

processes

* EPA is exploring options for future grant programs and other funding opportunities.



$500 Million in Available Funding for 2022  
CSB Rebates

Zero Emission  
Funding Pool:

Clean School Bus Funding  
Pool:

Applications  
exclusively  
requesting 
zero-  emission 
buses

Applications requesting  
zero-emission, propane,  
and/or compressed  
natural gas (CNG) buses

Funding Pools  
and Number 
of  
Applications

School districts applying directly  
for funds may only submit one  
application to replace up to 25  
buses. EPA will not fund multiple  
applications for bus replacements  
that will serve the same school  
district.

6



Activity Date

2022 CSB Rebates open. EPA begins accepting applications submitted via

online form

May 2022 – August 2022

EPA reviews applications and begins the selection process September 2022

EPA notifies applicants of selection status. Selectees can proceed with

purchasing new buses and eligible infrastructure.

October 2022

Selectees submit Payment Request Forms with purchase orders

demonstrating that new buses and eligible infrastructure have been  
ordered

Date of selection to April

2023

Project period deadline for selectees to receive new buses, install eligible

infrastructure, replace old buses, and submit Close Out Form

October 2024

7

Clean School Bus Rebate 
Timeline



8

Eligible Applicants

State and local 
governmental  entities 

responsible for: 1)  providing 
bus service to 1 or  more 

public school systems;  or 2) 
the purchase of school  

buses.

Nonprofit School  

Transportation Associations

Indian Tribes, Tribal  
Organizations, or tribally  

controlled schools
Eligible Contractors



Eligible  
Contractors

•Private school bus fleets cannot apply directly for funding under the 2022  
CSB Rebates. However, any of the eligible applicants can partner with a  
private fleet that owns and operates buses to replace buses that serve a  
school district under an active contract.

• For example:

• A bus dealer, Big Yellow Bus Sales, could apply to replace buses owned  
and operated by a private fleet, Safety-First Bus Company.

• These buses serve Washington County School District under a contract.

• When applying for funds, Big Yellow Bus Sales will need to list the private  
fleet that owns the buses and the school district served by the buses in  
the application.

• If selected for funding, Big Yellow Bus Sales must pass rebate funds on  
to the private fleet via a point-of-sale discount on the new buses or  
other financial arrangement.

• The buses must continue serving Washington County School  
District for at least 5 years from the date of delivery.

9



Example 1: Bus Dealer Applying for Private Fleet 
PartnerWhile 

applying:

Bus Dealer:
Yellow Bus Sales

Can apply to replace buses  
owned by

Bus dealer must list the private  
fleet that owns the buses and  
the school district served by  
the buses in the application.

Private Fleet:
Safety-First Bus Company

Old buses  
serve

Public School District:  

Washington County School  

District (under contract)

If 
selected:

Bus Dealer:
Yellow Bus Sales

Must pass funds to (e.g., via  
point-of-sale discount)

*Buses must serve district  
for least 5 years

Private Fleet:
Safety-First Bus Company

New buses  
serve*

Public School District:  
Washington County School  

District (under contract) 10



Example 2: School District Applying for Private Fleet 
Partner

While applying:
Can apply to replace buses  

owned by

Public School District:
Washington County School District*

Private Fleet:
Safety-First Bus Company

*Has existing contract with  
the private fleet for bus  
service

If 
selected:

Must pass funds to

Public School District:
Washington County School District

Private Fleet:
Safety-First Bus Company**Private fleet would replace  

old buses. New buses must  
serve same public school  
district for at least 5 years 11



Prioritized  
Applicants

• The Bipartisan Infrastructure Law allows 
EPA  to prioritize certain applicants.

• Applicants requesting funds to replace school  
buses that serve a school district that meets  
one or more of the prioritization criteria will  
be offered more funding per bus and receive  
preference in the selection process.

• EPA offers equal prioritization for school  
districts that meet one or multiple  
prioritization criteria.

• School districts that qualify under one or  
more of the prioritizations will be identified in  
EPA’s prioritized funding list.

12



Prioritization  
Criteria

1. High-need school districts and low-income areas
• School districts listed in the Small Area Income and Poverty  

Estimates (SAIPE) School District Estimates for 2020 as having 20%  
or more students living in poverty

• School districts not listed in the SAIPE data, including most charter  
schools, that self-certify as having 20% or more students living in  
poverty. EPA may ask for supporting documentation to confirm this  
self-certification.

• School districts located in the U.S. Virgin Islands, Guam, American  
Samoa, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands

2. Rural school districts
• School districts identified with locale codes “43-Rural: Remote” and  

“42-Rural: Distant” by the National Center for Education Statistics  
(NCES)

3. Tribal school districts

• Bureau of Indian Affairs funded school districts and school districts  
that receive basic support payments for children who reside on  
Indian land

13



School Bus Replacement  Guidelines

•Buses eligible for replacement must be 2010 or older  
diesel-powered school buses that will be scrapped if  
selected for funding.

•If a fleet has no eligible 2010 or older diesel school  buses 
and is requesting zero-emission school bus  replacements, 
the fleet can either:

• Scrap 2010 or older non-diesel internal combustion  
engine buses; or

• Scrap, sell, or donate 2011 or newer internal  
combustion engine buses

14



School Bus Replacement  Guidelines, 
Contd,

Buses eligible for replacement must:

• Have a Gross Vehicle Weight Rating (GVWR) of  
10,001 lbs. or more.

• Be operational at the time of application  
submission.

• Be owned by the fleet receiving the replacement  
bus.

• Have provided bus service to the school district for  at 
least 3 days/week on average during the  2021/2022 
school year at the time of applying.

15



School Bus  
Replacement  

Guidelines

New replacement buses must:

16

• Have a battery-electric, CNG, or propane  
drivetrain.

• Be EPA certified vehicle model year 2021 or  
newer.

• Have a Gross Vehicle Weight Rating (GVWR) of  
10,001 lbs. or more.

• Not be ordered prior to receiving official  
notification of selection for EPA funding.

• Be purchased, not leased or leased-to-own.

16



School Bus  
Replacement  

Guidelines  
(Continued)

New replacement buses must:

• Serve the school district listed on the application for at least  
5 years from the date of delivery.

• Meet federal safety standards and be maintained, operated,  
insured, registered, and charged/fueled according to  
manufacturer recommendations and state requirements.

• Not include an unvented diesel passenger heater.

• Not be funded with other federal funds.

• Upon request, be made available for inspection by EPA or its  
representatives for 5 years from the date of delivery.

17
17



Maximum Bus Funding Amount per Replacement School BusSchool Bus  
Replacement  
Funding

School District  
Prioritization  

Status

Replacement Bus Fuel Type and Size

ZE –

Class 7+

ZE –

Class 3-6

CNG –

Class 7+

CNG –

Class 3-
6

Propane

– Class  
7+

Propane

– Class  
3-6

Buses

serving  
school  
districts that  
meet one or  
more  
prioritization  
criteria

$375,000 $285,000 $45,000 $30,000 $30,000 $25,000

Buses

serving other
eligible  
school  
districts

$250,000 $190,000 $30,000 $20,000 $20,000 $15,000

18

The maximum rebate amount per bus is  
dependent on:

• Bus Fuel Type
• Bus Size
• Whether the school district served  

by the buses meets one or more  
prioritization criteria

The table displays maximum funding levels.  
EPA will not disburse rebate funds in 
excess  of the actual cost of the 
replacement bus  and any costs above the 
maximum funding  level are the sole 
responsibility of the  applicant/awardee.



Infrastructure  
Funding

This table displays the maximum funding  
levels. EPA will not disburse rebate funds in  
excess of the actual infrastructure costs.

19

Talk to your utility now if you are  
interested in zero-emission buses!

School District  
Prioritization Status

ZE – Class 3+

Infrastructure  
Funding

Buses serving

school districts that  
meet one or more  
prioritization  
criteria

$20,000

Buses serving other

eligible school  
districts

$13,000



Utility Distribution Network
Transformer

Electric  
Meter

Electric  
Panel

Charging  
Infrastructure  

Unit

Electric Bus

Eligible ExpenseNon-Eligible Expense

Infrastructure  
Funding 
Restrictions

20

• EPA funding for infrastructure is limited to the fleet’s side of the  meter (as 
shown on the right side of the diagram).

• All Level 2 charging infrastructure purchased under this program  must be EPA 
ENERGY STAR certified chargers.

• EPA strongly recommends that all other charging  infrastructure under this 
program be listed by a Nationally  Recognized Testing Laboratory (NRTL).

https://www.energystar.gov/products/other/ev_chargers
https://www.energystar.gov/products/other/ev_chargers


Application Process

21

• Applicants must submit applications using EPA’s Clean School Bus Rebate forms.

• To apply, organizations must:

1. Have an active System for Award Management (SAM.gov) entity registration

• Note: SAM.gov is transitioning from using a DUNS number to having a new Unique  
Entity ID (UEI). Organizations applying for rebates must know their UEI.

2.Have Points of Contact listed under their organization's SAM.gov entity registration in  
SAM.gov

• EPA will post a Questions and Answers document and anticipates updating the Q&A document  
every two weeks during the application period. Novel questions submitted to  
CleanSchoolBus@epa.gov during that period, including those from program webinars, will be  
added to this document.

• The application deadline will be in August- please check the website for exact date. Late  
applications will not be accepted.

mailto:CleanSchoolBus@epa.gov
mailto:CleanSchoolBus@epa.gov


Selection  
and  
Notification

• Applications received by the deadline will be  
placed in a single ordered list using a 
random  number generator lottery process.

• EPA will select applicants for funding, working 
from  the top to the bottom of the list, until all 
funds are  allocated from both the Clean School 
Bus and Zero  Emission halves of funding.

• To ensure a broad geographic distribution of funds,  
EPA will select at least one application per state or  
territory provided there is at least one eligible  
application.

• Applicants not selected by lottery will remain in  
random number order on a wait list.

22



Selectee Requirements

• EPA anticipates notifying applicants of their selection status within 60 days of the application  
deadline. Applicants that are selected for funding will receive an electronic status update that  
includes (1) that they have been selected for funding, (2) the maximum amount of funds that  
have been reserved for them, and (3) instructions on proceeding with the purchase of new  
buses and eligible infrastructure.

• After receiving notice of selection, selectees must submit an online Payment Request Form that  
includes an attached scan of the purchase order(s) for the new school buses and eligible  
infrastructure within six months.

Selectees can request extensions to the project period deadline. EPA will review these requests on 
a  case-by-case basis and may grant extensions if sufficient justification is provided.

23



Selectee Requirements

• Once selectees have received their new buses and eligible infrastructure and have replaced their  
old buses, they must submit an online Close Out Form. The Close Out Form must be submitted  
within two years of the date of the selection notification.

• The Close Out Form will require selectees to attach:
• For old buses being scrapped, scrappage photos and letter for buses being replaced
• For old buses eligible to be sold or donated, documentation of the vehicle sale or donation
• A scan of the invoices for the new buses and eligible infrastructure
• A scan of proof of delivery for the new buses and eligible infrastructure (e.g., dated bill of  

lading)
• One photo of the exterior of each new bus, labeled with the last 4 digits of the bus VIN
• One photo of each charging pedestal if EPA funds were used for charging infrastructure.

• Selectees must retain all financial records, supporting documents, accounting books and other  
evidence of Rebate Program activities for five years after delivery of the new buses. If any  
litigation, claim, or audit is started before the expiration of the five-year period, the recipient  
must maintain all appropriate records until these actions are completed and all issues resolved.

24



Reca
p

• EPA anticipates awarding $500 million in  
rebate funding for zero-emission and clean  
school buses.

• Don’t forget to start on your SAM.gov  
registration!

• Initiate discussions with your utility now if  
you will apply for zero-emission buses.

• EPA expects to post the program guide and  
prioritized applicant list in early May.

• Online application period will open in May  
and close in August.

25



26
26

EV Bus Cost:     $430,000 / Bus
EV Bus Rebate: $375,000 / Bus

District Cost : $55,000 / Bus for 5 years

Replacement Cost for 10 Buses : $550,000

No leasing Cost for next 4 years for the EV buses

Projected Fuel Savings with EV cost on average 
$4,000/bus/year

All the infrastructure cost is covered by the EPA 
grant and DTE rebates.



What Questions might you have ?

27



REGULAR MEETING (Monday, June 20, 2022)
Generated by Julie Haines on Tuesday, July 5, 2022
 
Members present 
Dr Celeste Hawkins, Gillian Ream Gainsley (arrived at 5:35 p.m.), Sharon Lee, Yvonne Fields (arrived at 5:38 p.m.), Maria Goodrich,
Jeanice Townsend
 
Members absent 
Meredith Schindler
 
Meeting called to order at 5:33 PM
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL OF BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Dr. Celeste Hawkins, Board President
Action: A. Roll Call of Board of Education Members
 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Dr. Celeste Hawkins, Board President
 
 
3. ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA
Action: A. Acceptance of Agenda
... MOVE THAT the Board of Education accept the agenda, as presented.
 
Motion by Sharon Lee, second by Jeanice Townsend.
Final Resolution: Motion Carries
Aye: Dr Celeste Hawkins, Sharon Lee, Maria Goodrich, Jeanice Townsend
 
 
4. PRESENTATIONS
Presentation: A. Community Violence Intervention by Officer Derrick Jackson
Officer Derrick Jackson, the Director of Community Engagement with the Washtenaw County Sheriff's Office, will present to the YCS
Board of Education on the recommendations of the Community Violence Intervention Team. The people who were there to present
were Derrick Jackson, Cherisa Allen, Gail Wolkolf, and Jamal Bufford, My Brother's Keeper Representative.
Click here to view the presentation.
Click here to view the recommendations.
 
Presentation: B. Preliminary Budget Recommendation: Priya Nayak, Director of Business/Finance
Director of Business & Finance Priya Nayak will give a presentation on a preliminary budget/finance recommendation in addition to
the final budget amendment.
Click here to view the presentation.
 
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENTS #1
Information: A. Guidelines for Public Comment
Public Comment Protocol | Pursuant to Board of Education Policy 0167.3
*The Board recognizes the value of public comment on educational issues and the importance of allowing members of the public to
express their view.
*Please limit statements to three (3) minutes duration.
*Participants shall direct all comments to the Board and not to staff or other participants; no person may address or question Board
members individually.
*Remarks shall be made in a respectful and professional manner.
No comments.
 
 
6. CONSENT AGENDA
Action (Consent), Minutes, Report: A. Consent Agenda
Seeking Board approval of the presented meeting minutes and personnel matters; see attachments below.
Resolution: ... MOVE THAT the Board of Education approve the: 1) May 9, 2022, Regular Board Meeting Minutes 2) Personnel
matters as per the presented list dated 6/20/22.
 
... MOVE THAT the Board of Education approve the: 
1) May 9, 2022, Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
2) Personnel matters as per the presented list dated 6/20/22.
 
Motion by Sharon Lee, second by Yvonne Fields.
Final Resolution: Motion Carries
Aye: Dr Celeste Hawkins, Gillian Ream Gainsley, Sharon Lee, Yvonne Fields, Maria Goodrich, Jeanice Townsend
 
 
7. ACTION ITEM: Student Affairs
Action, Procedural: A. Acceptance of Field Trip Request: YCHS Marching Band Camp (Leonard, MI)
This proposal comes from Jonathan Genautis, YCHS Band Director.  Students will learn drills and music for four songs that will be
performed during the 2022 Marching Band season.
Click here to view the field trip request.

https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/ycs/Board.nsf/files/CFDNH95C60B4/$file/Community%20Violence%20Intervention%20PUBLIC.pdf
https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/ycs/Board.nsf/files/CFDNHB5C623C/$file/CVIT%20Recommendations%20Final%20Version%20(1).pdf
https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/ycs/Board.nsf/files/CFKJ9N4C1D32/$file/2021%20-%202022%20Final%20Budget%20Amendment.pdf
https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/ycs/Board.nsf/files/CFDNYP5FA3A4/$file/Field%20Trip%20Request%20-%20Echo%20Grove%20Band%20Camp%20-%208-8%20to%208-13-22.pdf


... MOVE THAT the Board of Education approve the week-long field trip of the Ypsilanti Community High School Marching Band
program, in August 2022 to learn the 2022 marching band show.
 
Motion by Jeanice Townsend, second by Maria Goodrich.
Final Resolution: Motion Carries
Aye: Dr Celeste Hawkins, Gillian Ream Gainsley, Sharon Lee, Yvonne Fields, Maria Goodrich, Jeanice Townsend
 
Action: B. RESOLUTION: MHSAA Membership, 2022/23: Alena Zachery-Ross, Superintendent
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve this annual resolution for membership in the Michigan High School Athletic
Association (MHSAA).  This authorization shall be effective August 1, 2022 - July 31, 2023, during which the authorization may not
be revoked.  
 
Each school district which wishes one or more schools to participate in MHSAA tournaments and benefit from MHSAA services must
schedule on its Board of Education agenda the adoption of the Membership Resolution.  The Resolution should be signed in sufficient
time to prevent a lapse in membership (before August 1st).  A lapse in membership, even though only for a week, can create
unnecessary problems should there be claims under the $1,000,000 accident medical insurance plan or the concussion care gap
insurance or if eligibility rulings are to be made during that period.
Click here to view the resolution.
... MOVE THAT the Board of Education approve the Resolution for Membership in the Michigan High School Athletic Association,
effective August 1, 2022 - July 31, 2023.
 
Motion by Gillian Ream Gainsley, second by Sharon Lee.
Final Resolution: Motion Carries
Aye: Dr Celeste Hawkins, Gillian Ream Gainsley, Sharon Lee, Yvonne Fields, Maria Goodrich, Jeanice Townsend

 
8. ACTION ITEM: Human Resources
Action: A. Approval of Director of State and Federal Programs Contract: Sue McCarty, Director of Human Resources
The presented Director of State and Federal Programs Contract is provided for Board review.  It is recommended that the Board
approve the employment contract of Kacey Corbin.
...MOVE THAT the Board of Education approve the Director of State and Federal Programs Contract of Kacey Corbin with the
commencement date of July 1, 2022.
 
Motion by Gillian Ream Gainsley, second by Maria Goodrich.
Final Resolution: Motion Carries
Aye: Dr Celeste Hawkins, Gillian Ream Gainsley, Sharon Lee, Yvonne Fields, Maria Goodrich, Jeanice Townsend
 
Action: B. Approval of Human Resource Coordinator Contract: Sue McCarty, Director of Human Resources
The presented Human Resource Contract is provided for Board review.  It is recommended that the Board approve the employment
contract of Sean Fisher.
...MOVE THAT the Board of Education approve the Human Resource Coordinator Contract of Sean Fisher with the commencement
date of July 1, 2022.
 
Motion by Sharon Lee, second by Yvonne Fields.
Final Resolution: Motion Carries
Aye: Dr Celeste Hawkins, Gillian Ream Gainsley, Sharon Lee, Yvonne Fields, Maria Goodrich, Jeanice Townsend
 
 
9. ACTION ITEMS: Business and Finance
Action: A. Millage Rates | L-4029s: Priya Nayak, Director of Business/Finance
Ypsilanti Community Schools is strictly a summer tax collection. Each year, the Debt millage must be calculated and approved by the
District's Board of Education to accommodate the November and May Debt payment for the former districts of Willow Run
Community Schools and Ypsilanti Public Schools.  After approval of the Debt Millage, the L-4029s / 2022 Tax Rate Requests are sent
to the townships of Superior and Ypsilanti as well as City of Ypsilanti in preparation of tax bills sent to taxpayers.
Click here to view the Willow Run Tax Rate Request.
Click here to view the Ypsilanti Tax Rate Request.
... MOVE THAT the Board of Education approve the millage rates of the 2022 Tax Rate Request / L-4029s, as presented, for Superior
Township, Ypsilanti Township and the City of Ypsilanti.
 
Motion by Sharon Lee, second by Jeanice Townsend.
Final Resolution: Motion Carries
Aye: Dr Celeste Hawkins, Gillian Ream Gainsley, Sharon Lee, Yvonne Fields, Maria Goodrich, Jeanice Townsend
 
Action, Recognition: B. RESOLUTION, 2021/22 Final Budget Amendment: Priya Nayak, Director of Business/Finance
The proposed final budget revision reflects the most current budget data available for the current fiscal year.  The attached is the
General Fund June Budget Amendment.
 
The Revenue and Expense has been revised to accommodate additional funding received from state and federal funding source.
 Grant dates are for the period of July 1, 2021 - September 30, 2022.
Click here to view the 2021-22 Final GF Amendment.
Click here to view the 2021-22 Final Food Service Fund Amendment.
Click here to view the 2021-22 Final Fund 29 Amendment.
Click here to view the 2021-22 Final Debt Fund - Willow Run Amendment.
Click here to view the 2021-22 Final Debt Fund - Ypsilanti Amendment.
 

https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/ycs/Board.nsf/files/CFDRH76D1299/$file/MHSAA%20Membership%20Resolution%202022-23.pdf
https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/ycs/Board.nsf/files/CFFGRP4503F6/$file/L-%204029%20-%20Willow%20Run.pdf
https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/ycs/Board.nsf/files/CFFGRR45056C/$file/L-%204029%20-%20Ypsilanti.pdf
https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/ycs/Board.nsf/files/CFFJG6498B88/$file/2021%20-%202022%20Final%20GF%20Budget%20Amendment.pdf
https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/ycs/Board.nsf/files/CFFJGC498F72/$file/2021%20-%202022%20Final%20Food%20Service%20Fund%20%20Budget%20Amendment.pdf
https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/ycs/Board.nsf/files/CFFJG3498A30/$file/2021%20-%202022%20Final%20Fund%2029%20Budget%20Amendment.pdf
https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/ycs/Board.nsf/files/CFFJGE49909E/$file/2021%20-%202022%20Final%20Debt%20Fund%20-%20Willow%20Run%20Budget%20Amendment.pdf
https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/ycs/Board.nsf/files/CFFJG8498CF8/$file/2021%20-%202022%20Final%20Debt%20Fund%20-%20Ypsi%20%20Budget%20Amendment.pdf


... MOVE THAT the Board of Education approve the attached resolution for the 2021/22 June final budget amendment.
 
Motion by Jeanice Townsend, second by Sharon Lee.
Final Resolution: Motion Carries
Aye: Dr Celeste Hawkins, Gillian Ream Gainsley, Sharon Lee, Yvonne Fields, Maria Goodrich, Jeanice Townsend
 
Action: C. RESOLUTION, 2022/23 Initial Budget: Priya Nayak, Director of Business/Finance
Michigan's Uniform Budgeting and Accounting Act requires the adoption of the budget before the new fiscal year begins.  The
proposed 2022/23 budget is built based on a number of assumptions.  After the annual financial audit is completed, and after the
Fall 2022 student enrollment data is available, a budget revision will be prepared to reflect the most current financial information
and projections.
 
The budget impact is as detailed in the attached General Appropriations Resolution for fiscal year 2022/23.
Click here to view the 2022-23 Initial GF Proposal.
Click here to view the 2022-23 Initial Food Service Proposal.
Click here to view the 2022-23 Initial Fund 29 Proposal.
Click here to view the 2022-23 Initial Debt Fund - Willow Run Proposal.
Click here to view the 2022-23 Initial Debt Fund - Ypsilanti Proposal.
... MOVE THAT the Board of Education approve the attached 2022/23 General Appropriations Resolution.
 
Motion by Jeanice Townsend, second by Yvonne Fields.
Final Resolution: Motion Carries
Aye: Dr Celeste Hawkins, Gillian Ream Gainsley, Sharon Lee, Yvonne Fields, Maria Goodrich, Jeanice Townsend
 
Action: D. RESOLUTION, State Aid Anticipation Note: Priya Nayak, Director of Business/Finance
A significant percentage of Michigan public school districts borrow funds for general operating purposes each year. This is necessary
because the timing of the state aid does not match the timing of the school districts' cash outflow. Several years ago, the State
stretched out the timing of its state aid payments from nine months to eleven months, slowing down school districts' revenue
stream, and increasing their need to borrow funds.
 
It is recommended the Board approve the enclosed Thrun Law resolution, Resolution Authorizing Issuance of Notes in Anticipation of
State School Aid (August 2022 Borrowing Through the Michigan Finance Authority), authorizing the issuance of up to $5,000,000 of
state aid anticipation notes through the Michigan Finance Authority's state aid anticipation program.
 
Note issuance and interest costs estimate: $52,000 - $75,000
Click here to view the resolution.
... MOVE THAT the Board of Education approve the Resolution Authorizing Issuance of Notes in Anticipation of State School Aid
(August 2022 Borrowing Through the Michigan Finance Authority), authorizing the issuance of up to $5,000,000 of state aid
anticipation notes through the Michigan Finance Authority's state aid anticipation program.
 
Motion by Gillian Ream Gainsley, second by Sharon Lee.
Final Resolution: Motion Carries
Aye: Dr Celeste Hawkins, Gillian Ream Gainsley, Sharon Lee, Yvonne Fields, Maria Goodrich, Jeanice Townsend
 
Action: E. RESOLUTION, SBLF: Priya Nayak, Director of Business/Finance
School districts that participate in the State's school bond loan fund are required to annually determine if they are levying sufficient
debt millage to repay the school bond loan program by their final mandatory repayment date. Submission of the enclosed resolution
for the former Willow Run Community Schools is required by the Michigan Department of Treasury. August 1, 2022 is the deadline to
return approved documents. The annual loan worksheet is also attached.
Click here to view the SBLF Resolution.
Click here to view the annual worksheet calculations. 
... MOVE THAT the Board of Education adopt the presented resolution to authorize the Annual Loan/Repayment Activity Application
for the former Willow Run Community Schools.
 
Motion by Jeanice Townsend, second by Yvonne Fields.
Final Resolution: Motion Carries
Aye: Dr Celeste Hawkins, Gillian Ream Gainsley, Sharon Lee, Yvonne Fields, Maria Goodrich, Jeanice Townsend
 
Action: F. Approval of the UKG Time for School Software: Priya Nayak, Director of Business/Finance
YCS District Administration is seeking Board approval of the presented UKG Time for School quote. UKG Time for School (powered
by UKG Ready) enables school districts to simplify and automate routine tasks, including Online HR onboarding, approving
timesheets, correcting exceptions, responding to time-off requests, and managing extra duty with flexible workflows. A robust pay
calculation engine, automated notifications, configurable reports, and real-time access to accurate time information help you
minimize compliance risks and simply extra duty tracking. The purchase is for $116,950.
Click here to view the UKG Tie for School software proposal.
...MOVE THAT the Board of Education accept, as presented, the UKG Time for School software proposal for $116.950.00.
 
Motion by Yvonne Fields, second by Sharon Lee.
Final Resolution: Motion Carries
Aye: Dr Celeste Hawkins, Gillian Ream Gainsley, Sharon Lee, Yvonne Fields, Maria Goodrich, Jeanice Townsend
 
 
10. BOARD OF EDUCATION WORKSHOP
Discussion: A. Board of Education Values Work Continuation with Mary Kerwin
 

https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/ycs/Board.nsf/files/CFFPB263BFE3/$file/2022%20-%202023%20Initial%20GF%20Budget%20Proposal.pdf
https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/ycs/Board.nsf/files/CFFPB463C138/$file/2022%20-%202023%20Initial%20Food%20Service%20Budget%20Proposal.pdf
https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/ycs/Board.nsf/files/CFFPBH63C620/$file/2022%20-%202023%20Initial%20Fund%2029%20Budget%20Proposal.pdf
https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/ycs/Board.nsf/files/CFFPBE63C4D1/$file/2022%20-%202023%20Initial%20Debt%20Fund%20-%20Willow%20Run%20Budget%20Proposal.pdf
https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/ycs/Board.nsf/files/CFFPBA63C2C3/$file/2022%20-%202023%20Initial%20Debt%20Fund%20-%20Ypsi%20Budget%20Proposal.pdf
https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/ycs/Board.nsf/files/CFFPCK63FA98/$file/Resolution-MFA%20(01870999xA9E76).pdf
https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/ycs/Board.nsf/files/CFFGS645208B/$file/SBLF%20-%20Resolution.pdf
https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/ycs/Board.nsf/files/CFFGS8452205/$file/Annual%20Worksheet%20Calculations.pdf
https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/ycs/Board.nsf/files/CFFQN66A11FE/$file/ypsilanti%20pub%20school%20district%20Q-108863%20wfr%20net%20new%206.10.22%20order%20packet.pdf


Discussion: B. Board of Education Goal Updates with Mary Kerwin
 
 
11. PUBLIC COMMENTS #2
Information: A. Guidelines for Public Comment
Public Comment Protocol | Pursuant to Board of Education Policy 0167.3
*The Board recognizes the value of public comment on educational issues and the importance of allowing members of the public to
express their view.
*Please limit statements to three (3) minutes duration.
*Participants shall direct all comments to the Board and not to staff or other participants; no person may address or question Board
members individually.
*Remarks shall be made in a respectful and professional manner.
No comments.
 
 
12. BOARD/SUPERINTENDENT COMMENTS
Trustee Goodrich: YCHS graduation was awesome. Congrats to everyone involved and to the graduates as well as the ECA and
WAVE graduates.
Trustee Townsend: Did a great job on all graduations. She has the pool passes from Rutherford Pool. She will get them out to the
Grizzly Learning Camp. Trying to get them mailed out or picked up at the pool. 
Trustee Gainsley: GLC started today so thank you to everyone who made that happen. 
Dr. Zachery-Ross: Thank you for participating in graduation and all the other activities even for the younger grades. Thank you for
helping out with the first Boot on the Ground event at Normal Park. There are two more coming up quickly. There is still time to sign
up for Grizzly Learning Camp. The Willow Run space is working well and is enabling all the other buildings to get cleaned efficiently
and effectively. Big kudos to the tech, custodial, transportation, food service departments that had to get that up and running. An
exciting summer with PDs planned, board retreat, administration retreat, etc, so there will be a lot of learning going on.
Dr. Hawkins: Congratulations to all the graduates, educators, and families and a reminder that it is Juneteenth and she is full of joy
for all the celebrations. 
 
13. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING
Meeting adjourned at 9:34 p.m.



Board of Education 

Name Location Position

New Hire
Adams, Paul YIES/Homes Media Specialist
Avery, Maddox Middle School ELA
Barbour, Emily Perry 1st Grade
Beyer, Dana ACCE ELA
Cardona, Alison YIES Building Secretary
Cox, Kristina Middle School Math
Draine-Dale, Laquanda Ford Youn 5's
Elkins, Ellen Erickson 4th Grade
Ferguson, Joshua High School Social Studies
Hawkins, Jackson Middle School Social Studies
Kelham, Hannah ACCE Music
Laporte, Connor High School Social Studies
Love, An'Johnette District Spec Ed - Social Worker
Love, Taylor Holmes Teacher
Prall, Jordan ACCE Art
Radelt, Morgana Middle School Science
Stewart, Henry YIES  Custodian
Trejo, Lauren District Speech/Language 
Winther, Emily Erickson 1st Grade

Resigned   
Genova, Lisa Estabrook Teacher
Gompper, Maya Erickson Teacher
Harris, Hugh Transportation Bus Driver
Hart Browning, Joe Ella Food Service Food Service Worker
Hunnewell, Marjorie District Psychologist
Kadian, Samantha Erickson Teacher
Leffel-Jones, Lauren ACCE Teacher
Siyaj, Judi Ford Teacher

Retirement   
Masters, Cathy Estabrook Special Education Teacher
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 6/29/2022  

Note this list is subject to change.  If there are any changes, an updated version will be shared before the board meeting.























































































CHANGE ORDER #3 - Pool Project Part Two 
Date: 7-11-2022 
Change Order Number: 3 
Project:  Ypsilanti Community  

1885 Packard Road  
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

Agreement Date: 6-25-2020 
To Customer: Ypsilanti Community Schools 
Agreement No. USB-021714 
The Parties hereby agree to modify the above-referenced Agreement (the “Agreement”) as set forth 
below. Except as modified herein, all other terms and conditions of the Agreement will remain 
unchanged and in full force and effect. 
The Agreement is changed as follows:  
The following work will be added to Attachment A – Scope of Work: 

 
M.  Pool Filter Room Upgrades 
       1.  Piping Enclosure on Pool Deck 

a.     Existing piping that is exposed on the pool deck will be enclosed in a stainless-steel     
                    metal cover.  

a. Metal cover shall be anchored to the wall, enclosing the exposed piping. 
2. Filter Room Piping 

a. Demo and remove the existing supply and return piping from the pool, including removing 
existing supports and patching as required. 

b. Honeywell shall install new piping for modifications made to the pool gutter system based 
on the preliminary engineered drawings.  Upon DEQ approval and final project acceptance, 
Honeywell will provide final as built engineered drawings. 

c. Honeywell shall pipe new 6” return line from the gutter converter to the existing 6” isolation 
valve in the Pool Filter Room. 

d. Honeywell shall pipe new 8” gutter line from each gutter converter back to the surge tank.  
e. Pipe and pipe fittings shall be Schedule 80 PVC. 
f. New hangers shall be stainless steel. 

 
N. Pool Water Boiler and Munters Boiler Replacement  

1. Honeywell shall demo and legally dispose of two (2) existing Raypak boilers in Boiler Room.  
2. The existing boilers (one of which heats the pool water, the other heats the Munters Unit), will 

be replaced with one (1) new high-efficiency Lochinvar condensing boiler (2,000 MBH) to serve 
both systems.  

3. Honeywell shall re-pipe the system as a primary/secondary system. Primary pump will flow 
through the boiler. Secondary pump #1 will flow through the Dehumidification Unit. Secondary 
pump #2 will flow through the heat exchanger loop to heat the pool.   

4. The piping loop that runs to the Pool Filter Room and back up shall be removed such that the 
piping goes directly to the equipment and pool that is served.  

5. Provide new isolation valves, air separator, and expansion tank. 



6. Provide necessary piping, electrical, and venting changes needed for new boiler.  
7. Provide insulation on new piping.  
8. Provide necessary electrical and controls for new boilers.   
9. Conduct start-up of new boilers. 
10. Provide installation, parts, labor, and permits as required. 
11. New boilers integrated into existing BMS are excluded from this Scope of Work (District to 

purchase directly from Trane). 
 
O. Stainless Steel Gutter System  

1. Stainless-Steel Gutter System: 
a. Honeywell shall replace the existing, tiled gutter system with a stainless steel gutter 

system, per the preliminary engineered drawings. 
b. Cut away the existing concrete to create a squared pocket for the installation of the 

new stainless-steel gutter system.  
c. Provide and install a new stainless steel gutter system as described below: 

1. Furnish and install a stainless-steel perimeter re-circulating gutter system.  
2. The system shall consist of an overflow channel to collect water around the 

perimeter of the pool and return it back to the filtration system. 
3. The system shall include a filtered water supply channel around the 

perimeter of the pool. This channel will have integral small return jets that 
supply water into the pool around the perimeter.  

4. Perimeter sections shall be fabricated from Type 304L stainless steel with a 
#3 polished finish. The anchors and stiffeners shall be Type 304L stainless 
steel. 

5. The system will be engineered to meet DEQ Code requirements as of July 
2022 and be field assembled on site.   

6. The gutter system shall be grouted in, providing a complete supply and 
return system for the perimeter of the pool.  

7. The existing tile shall be repaired up to the new gutter system being 
installed. 

2. Pool Tile Repair 
a. Honeywell shall repair the pool tile walls per the preliminary engineered drawings. 
b. Pool Tile Walls Repair – Return Jets: 

1. There are twenty-eight (28) existing wall return jets that shall be removed 
and patched to match. 

2. Existing return jets to be cut back into the wall minimum of 4” and plugged 
with rubber gripper plugs. Patch holes with hydraulic cement and provide 
ceramic tile patch flush with adjacent surfaces. Remove return piping, 
fittings, and hangers in the tunnel.  

c. Pool Tile Walls Repair – Vacuum Ports: 
1. There are four (4) existing wall vacuum ports that shall be removed and 

patched to match. 
2. Existing steel wall vacuum ports to be removed. Cut back into the wall 

minimum of 6”, plug and seal watertight. Treat steel for bleed through. Patch 
tile wall flush with adjacent surfaces.  

d. Pool Tile Walls Repair – Underwater Lights: 
1. There are thirty-three (33) existing underwater pool lights that shall be 

removed and patched to match. 



2. Cut back existing niche a minimum of 6”, plug wall structure and seal 
watertight. Patch tile wall flush with adjacent surfaces.  

e. Pool Tile Walls Repair - Targets: 
1. There are twenty-four (24) existing tile wall targets that shall be re-

configured for the new gutter system. 
2. Re-configure each target from “cross” shapes to “tee” shapes, in order to 

accommodate the new stainless steel gutter system. Remove tile as 
necessary on existing targets to accomplish this.  

f. Pool Tile Floor Repair:  
1. There are many areas of the pool tile floor that have failed grout/tile pops 

that need repair.   
2. Provide for up to 200 square feet of existing wall/floor tile mud bed and tile 

replacement. This floor tile repair is over and above the repairs identified for 
abandoned holes through the pool walls and over-cut repairs required for the 
stainless steel gutter system installation.  

3. Re-Grout of Entire Pool 
a. Honeywell shall re-grout the pool per the preliminary engineered drawings. 
b. Upon completion of tile repairs and stainless steel gutter system installation, provide 

a re-grout of the pool tile for a consistent finish and appearance.  
 
P.  Replacement of Ceiling Tiles, Diffusers & Grilles 
      (Not in Scope of Work, contracted directly to District). 
 
Q.  Replacement of Pool Lights  

1.   Honeywell shall install fourteen (14) natatorium-rated 2x4 LED recessed troffers around the 
perimeter of the pool to increase light levels during swim meets.  

2.   The fourteen (14) new fixtures shall be put on a separate scene button at the existing switch 
location and tied into the lighting control panel in the mezzanine mechanical room. 

3.    Honeywell shall install new PVC conduit and a gasketed cover along with a new low voltage 6-
button scene switch in the same location as the existing switch. 

4.   One (1) of the existing 2x4 LED troffers is very close to the edge of the pool, making it difficult 
to access if maintenance is required. Honeywell shall relocate this fixture over the pool deck, 
making it accessible. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



The original Contract Sum was $     1,800,000 
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders $     1,036,685 
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was $     2,836,685 
The Contract Sum will be increased by this Change Order #3  
(Change Order #3 Items M - Q) in the amount of $     1,345,800 
The Contract Sum including this Change Order #3 is  $     4,182,485 
Initial Payment Due upon Execution of Change Order #3  $        538,320 
 
The original annual Energy Savings Guarantee was $         106,339 
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders $                    0 
The Energy Guarantee prior to this Change Order was $         106,339 
The Energy Guarantee will be changed by this Change Order………………. $             4,703 
The new Energy Guarantee for Year 1 including this Change Order will be…$        111,042 
The Operational Savings Guarantee prior to this Change Order was…………. $            61,559 
The Operational Savings Guarantee will be changed by this Change Order. $              3,272 
The new Operational Savings Guarantee including this Change Order……  $             64,831 
 
Honeywell’s Change Order Pricing identified above, as Scope of Work items M – Q, is based on the change order being 
signed and funding for all of the work described being secured by Ypsilanti Community School District by July 20, 2022.  
Should funding for any of the upgrades identified in Scope of Work above be delayed beyond that date, Honeywell reserves 
the right to adjust its change order pricing.  Any modifications to the individual Scope of Work Pricing shall be documented 
in a change order and signed by both parties. 

     
Honeywell International Inc.  Ypsilanti Community Schools  
115 Tabor Road                       1885 Packard Road  
Morris Plains, New Jersey 07950 Ypsilanti, MI 48198  

 
By:   By:   

 
Name:   Name:    

 
Date: _________________________   Date: _________________________  



 
 

Ypsilanti Community Schools, Washtenaw County, Michigan (the “District”) 

A regular meeting of the board of education of the District (the “Board”) was held in the 
_____________________________________, within the boundaries of the District, on the 11th 
day of July 2022, at _____ o’clock in the __.m. (the “Meeting”). 

The Meeting was called to order by _____________________, President. 

Present: Members                                 

Absent: Members                                 

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member ___________________ 
and supported by Member ____________________: 

WHEREAS:  

1. Pursuant to the Michigan Election Law, the District’s regular school election shall 
be held on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November of even years. 

2. It is necessary to conduct the District’s regular election on Tuesday, November 8, 
2022, to fill one or more Board positions. 

3. On or before 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, August 16, 2022, the Board shall certify any 
ballot proposition to be submitted to the voters at such election to the election coordinator or 
coordinators designated to conduct elections within the District (the “Election Coordinator”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The regular school election of the school electors of the District be called and held 
on Tuesday, November 8, 2022. 

2. The proposition to be voted on at the regular school election shall be stated on the 
ballots in substantially the form as set forth in Exhibit A.  

3. The Election Coordinator is requested to: 

a. Utilize _____________________, a newspaper published or of general circulation 
within the District, for publication of notices in accordance with the election law 
requirements. 

b. Utilize ballot proposition summary information, as prepared by legal counsel, in 
the forms of the notices of last day of registration and election in substantially the 
form as set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto. 

c. Provide a proof copy of the ballot to the District and its legal counsel in sufficient 
time to allow the ballot to be proofread prior to printing. 

4. The Secretary of this Board is hereby authorized and directed to file a copy of this 
resolution with the Election Coordinator and with any Election Clerk or clerks designated to 
conduct elections within the District by 4:00 p.m., on Tuesday, August 16, 2022. 



 
 

2 

5. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions 
of this resolution be and the same are hereby rescinded. 

Ayes:  Members                 

Nays:  Members                  

Resolution declared adopted. 

  
Secretary, Board of Education 

The undersigned duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Board of Education of Ypsilanti 
Community Schools, Washtenaw County, Michigan, hereby certifies that the foregoing constitutes 
a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board at the Meeting, the original of which 
is part of the Board’s minutes. The undersigned further certifies that notice of the Meeting was 
given to the public pursuant to the provisions of the “Open Meetings Act” (Act 267, Public Acts 
of Michigan, 1976, as amended). 

  
Secretary, Board of Education 

MDG/lma 
  



 
 

3 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 YPSILANTI COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
 OPERATING MILLAGE PROPOSAL 

This proposal will allow the school district to continue to levy the statutory rate of 
not to exceed 18 mills on all property, except principal residence and other property 
exempted by law, required for the school district to receive its full revenue per pupil 
foundation allowance. 

Shall the limitation on the amount of taxes which may be assessed against all property, except 
principal residence and other property exempted by law, in Ypsilanti Community Schools, 
Washtenaw County, Michigan, be increased by 3 mills ($3.00 on each $1,000 of taxable valuation) 
for a period of 10 years, 2023 to 2032, inclusive, to provide funds for operating purposes; the 
estimate of the revenue the school district will collect if the millage is approved and .03 mill of the 
3 mills is levied in 2023 is approximately $19,593 (this millage is to restore millage lost as a result 
of the reduction required by the “Headlee” amendment to the Michigan Constitution of 1963 and 
will be levied only to the extent necessary to restore that reduction)? 

 



 
 

4 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 

SUMMARY OF BALLOT PROPOSITION TO BE INSERTED IN THE 
NOTICES OF LAST DAY OF REGISTRATION AND ELECTION: 

 
 YPSILANTI COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 

OPERATING MILLAGE PROPOSAL 
EXEMPTING PRINCIPAL RESIDENCE 

AND OTHER PROPERTY EXEMPTED BY LAW 
3 MILLS FOR 10 YEARS 

FOR HEADLEE RESTORATION PURPOSES, IF NECESSARY 

 
 Full text of the ballot proposition may be obtained at the administrative offices of Ypsilanti 
Community Schools, 1885 Packard Road, Ypsilanti, Michigan 48197-1846, telephone: (734) 221-
1200.  
 



 Resolution in Support of The Ann Arbor Transportation Authority 2022 Millage 
 July 11, 2022 

 WHEREAS,  many YCS students and their families rely on public transportation to access 
 school, work, health care, recreation and worship, and 

 WHEREAS,  the Ann Arbor Area Transportation Authority has been committed to provision of 
 sustainable, effective public transportation options within the Ann Arbor-Ypsilanti area for many 
 decades; and 

 WHEREAS,  an improved public transit system would help our district and our region attract 
 and retain staff members and families by supporting economic development and job growth 
 while also making our community accessible to all; and 

 WHEREAS,  local public transit services are critical for seniors and people with disabilities to 
 maintain independence and mobility; and 

 WHEREAS,  YCS students at ACCE in particular on public transit services to reach their school 
 with the flexibility and reliability necessary for those students to be successful; and 

 WHEREAS,  The Ride is proposing to enhance and expand its existing services by adding 
 additional night and weekend service, increasing the speed and frequency of connections 
 between Ann Arbor and Ypsilanti, and offering additional resources for mobility programs for 
 seniors and people with disabilities; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  the Board of Education of the Ypsilanti 
 Community Schools supports the need for fast, reliable, high-quality transportation options for 
 our community. We urge local residents to vote “yes” on the AAATA public transit ballot 
 proposal in August 2022 and support TheRide in its efforts to improve service on the east side of 
 Washtenaw County. 


	July 11 2022 Board of Education Agenda
	Copy of YCS_Board Language Program
	2022-csb-rebates-webinar-2022-04-27.pptx
	June 20 2022 Approved Board of Education Minutes
	HR BoE List 7.5.22
	Sheet1

	NWEA Invoice 2022-2023
	Illuminate Education Invoice 2022-2023
	Edmentum - Apex Learning Courses Invoice 2022-2023
	Imagine Learning Invoice 2022-2023
	HMH Professional Service Invoice 2022-2023
	HMH Amira Assessment 3-Year Subscription Invoice 2022-2023
	Elevate K-12 Invoice 2022-2023
	Collabrify.IT, Inc. Invoice 2022-2023
	WISD Conceptual Framework for TAR Invoice 2022-2023
	YMCA and EMU Room 107 and 110 9-1-22_6-30-23 Lease
	Honeywell Change Order - YCHS Pool - June 2022
	1.  Piping Enclosure on Pool Deck
	a.     Existing piping that is exposed on the pool deck will be enclosed in a stainless-steel
	a. Metal cover shall be anchored to the wall, enclosing the exposed piping.

	2. Filter Room Piping
	a. Demo and remove the existing supply and return piping from the pool, including removing existing supports and patching as required.
	b. Honeywell shall install new piping for modifications made to the pool gutter system based on the preliminary engineered drawings.  Upon DEQ approval and final project acceptance, Honeywell will provide final as built engineered drawings.
	c. Honeywell shall pipe new 6” return line from the gutter converter to the existing 6” isolation valve in the Pool Filter Room.
	d. Honeywell shall pipe new 8” gutter line from each gutter converter back to the surge tank.
	e. Pipe and pipe fittings shall be Schedule 80 PVC.
	f. New hangers shall be stainless steel.

	N. Pool Water Boiler and Munters Boiler Replacement
	1. Honeywell shall demo and legally dispose of two (2) existing Raypak boilers in Boiler Room.
	2. The existing boilers (one of which heats the pool water, the other heats the Munters Unit), will be replaced with one (1) new high-efficiency Lochinvar condensing boiler (2,000 MBH) to serve both systems.
	3. Honeywell shall re-pipe the system as a primary/secondary system. Primary pump will flow through the boiler. Secondary pump #1 will flow through the Dehumidification Unit. Secondary pump #2 will flow through the heat exchanger loop to heat the pool.
	4. The piping loop that runs to the Pool Filter Room and back up shall be removed such that the piping goes directly to the equipment and pool that is served.
	5. Provide new isolation valves, air separator, and expansion tank.
	6. Provide necessary piping, electrical, and venting changes needed for new boiler.
	7. Provide insulation on new piping.
	8. Provide necessary electrical and controls for new boilers.
	9. Conduct start-up of new boilers.
	10. Provide installation, parts, labor, and permits as required.
	11. New boilers integrated into existing BMS are excluded from this Scope of Work (District to purchase directly from Trane).
	O. Stainless Steel Gutter System
	1. Stainless-Steel Gutter System:
	a. Honeywell shall replace the existing, tiled gutter system with a stainless steel gutter system, per the preliminary engineered drawings.
	b. Cut away the existing concrete to create a squared pocket for the installation of the new stainless-steel gutter system.
	c. Provide and install a new stainless steel gutter system as described below:
	1. Furnish and install a stainless-steel perimeter re-circulating gutter system.
	2. The system shall consist of an overflow channel to collect water around the perimeter of the pool and return it back to the filtration system.
	3. The system shall include a filtered water supply channel around the perimeter of the pool. This channel will have integral small return jets that supply water into the pool around the perimeter.
	4. Perimeter sections shall be fabricated from Type 304L stainless steel with a #3 polished finish. The anchors and stiffeners shall be Type 304L stainless steel.
	5. The system will be engineered to meet DEQ Code requirements as of July 2022 and be field assembled on site.
	6. The gutter system shall be grouted in, providing a complete supply and return system for the perimeter of the pool.
	7. The existing tile shall be repaired up to the new gutter system being installed.

	2. Pool Tile Repair
	a. Honeywell shall repair the pool tile walls per the preliminary engineered drawings.
	b. Pool Tile Walls Repair – Return Jets:
	1. There are twenty-eight (28) existing wall return jets that shall be removed and patched to match.
	2. Existing return jets to be cut back into the wall minimum of 4” and plugged with rubber gripper plugs. Patch holes with hydraulic cement and provide ceramic tile patch flush with adjacent surfaces. Remove return piping, fittings, and hangers in the...
	c. Pool Tile Walls Repair – Vacuum Ports:
	1. There are four (4) existing wall vacuum ports that shall be removed and patched to match.
	2. Existing steel wall vacuum ports to be removed. Cut back into the wall minimum of 6”, plug and seal watertight. Treat steel for bleed through. Patch tile wall flush with adjacent surfaces.
	d. Pool Tile Walls Repair – Underwater Lights:
	1. There are thirty-three (33) existing underwater pool lights that shall be removed and patched to match.
	2. Cut back existing niche a minimum of 6”, plug wall structure and seal watertight. Patch tile wall flush with adjacent surfaces.
	e. Pool Tile Walls Repair - Targets:
	1. There are twenty-four (24) existing tile wall targets that shall be re-configured for the new gutter system.
	2. Re-configure each target from “cross” shapes to “tee” shapes, in order to accommodate the new stainless steel gutter system. Remove tile as necessary on existing targets to accomplish this.
	f. Pool Tile Floor Repair:
	1. There are many areas of the pool tile floor that have failed grout/tile pops that need repair.
	2. Provide for up to 200 square feet of existing wall/floor tile mud bed and tile replacement. This floor tile repair is over and above the repairs identified for abandoned holes through the pool walls and over-cut repairs required for the stainless s...

	3. Re-Grout of Entire Pool
	a. Honeywell shall re-grout the pool per the preliminary engineered drawings.
	b. Upon completion of tile repairs and stainless steel gutter system installation, provide a re-grout of the pool tile for a consistent finish and appearance.

	1.   Honeywell shall install fourteen (14) natatorium-rated 2x4 LED recessed troffers around the perimeter of the pool to increase light levels during swim meets.
	2.   The fourteen (14) new fixtures shall be put on a separate scene button at the existing switch location and tied into the lighting control panel in the mezzanine mechanical room.
	3.    Honeywell shall install new PVC conduit and a gasketed cover along with a new low voltage 6-button scene switch in the same location as the existing switch.
	4.   One (1) of the existing 2x4 LED troffers is very close to the edge of the pool, making it difficult to access if maintenance is required. Honeywell shall relocate this fixture over the pool deck, making it accessible.

	Authorizing Resolution (01879606xA9E76) (002)
	ResolutioninSupportofRTA.docx - Google Docs

